
CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

**Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate 
the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services.  For additional information to request this 
service, please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 

 
MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, September 21, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the September 7, 2016 Meeting 

3. Certified Survey Map – First Congregational Church – 801 Bushnell Street 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 801 
Bushnell Street  

4. Purchase Agreement – Ironworks Parking Lot – 650 Third Street 
Review and consideration of a Purchase and Sales Agreement for a portion of 650 Third Street 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

6. Adjournment 

If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact Ashley Rosenbaum in the Planning and Building 
Services Office at 364-6700 no later than 4:00 PM the day before the meeting. 

Notice Mailed:  September 16, 2016 Approved: Julie Christensen, Community 
Development Director 



CITY HALL • 100 STATE STREET • BELOIT, WI 53511 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

Beloit City Plan Commission 
Wednesday, September 7, 2016 at 7:00 PM 

The Forum 
Beloit City Hall, First Floor 

100 State Street, Beloit 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
Chairperson Faragher called the meeting to order at 7:04pm. Commissioners Tinder, Faragher, 
Finnegan, Ruster, Weeden and Councilor Leavy were present. Commissioners Haynes and Johnson 
were absent.  
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the August 17, 2016 Meeting 
Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the minutes from the August 17, 2016 meeting. 
Commissioner Ruster seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  
 

3. Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map – 3654 South Paddock Road 
Review and consideration of a two-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for the property located 
at 3654 South Paddock Road in the Town of Beloit 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Commissioner Faragher inquired into the potential future land use. Bob Leuenberger responded 
that at this point, there are no plans, and the owner simply desires to sell the property.  

Commissioner Finnegan moved to approve the Certified Survey Map. Commissioner Tinder 
seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  

4. Condominium Plat – Walnut Grove Condominiums Phase 2 – 2260 and 2265 Walnut Street 
Review and consideration of a 12-unit Condominium Plat for the properties located at 2260 and 
2265 Walnut Street 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Commissioner Faragher inquired into the quality of the existing units. Ms. Christensen answered 
that they appear to be quality units.  

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the Condominium Plat. Commissioner Finnegan seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  



Page 2 of 3 

 

5. Electric Transmission Line Easement – 3015 Cranston Road 
Review and consideration of a request to grant an Electric Transmission Line Easement to American 
Transmission Company along the northern edge of the City-owned property located at 3015 
Cranston Road 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Anita LaCoursier, Madison, Wisconsin, a representative from American Transmission Company, 
addressed the commission and explained why the company is requesting the easement.  

Commissioner Ruster moved to approve the easement. Commissioner Tinder seconded the motion. 
The motion passed, voice vote.  

6. Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 631, 640, 654 and 657 Bluff Street 
Public hearing, review and consideration of an amendment to the Future Land Use Map of the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan from Single-Family Residential - Urban to Office for the properties 
located at 631, 640, 654 and 657 Bluff Street. 

Ms. Julie Christensen, Community Development Director, presented the staff report and 
recommendation.  

Commission Faragher asked when this neighborhood was re-zoned to Single-Family Residential. Ms. 
Christensen stated that it was re-zoned in early 1999.  

Commissioner Weeden asked how this Amendment would affect the non-conforming properties. 
Ms. Christensen stated that Grinnell Senior Center would not be required to obtain a Conditional 
Use Permit following the rezoning, and they would retain their legal non-conforming status. She 
explained that if the apartments were to be re-established, a Conditional Use Permit would be 
required, and the Plan Commission would be able to recommend conditions to be met before the 
use could be established. 

Commissioner Faragher asked about the status of the foreclosure of 640 Bluff Street. Ms. 
Christensen stated that the property was foreclosed on in February, and a default judgment and a 
three-month redemption period was granted on July 15, 2016.  

Commissioner Finnegan asked how this would affect the bank that owns the property. He was 
concerned that they had not been contacted and how the Amendment would affect the number of 
units available. Ms. Christensen explained that the City has made numerous efforts to contact the 
bank with no result. Currently, the property is zoned Single-Family Residential and has been vacant.  
Therefore, it could only be used as a single-family structure without this change. 

The Commissioners discussed the history of the building and renovations done to the building.  

Commissioner Ruster asked why the City of Beloit notifies the Town of Beloit and the South Beloit 
clerks. Ms. Christensen explained that it is required by the Comprehensive Plan regulations. 

Commissioner Tinder moved to approve the Comprehensive Plan Amendment. Commissioner 
Finnegan seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote.  



Page 3 of 3 

 

7. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 

City Council approved the Conditional Use Permits for 625-701 Third St and 1028 Mary Street as 
well as the annexation of 2028 E Ridge Road.  

8. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 7:30pm.  

Minutes respectfully submitted by Ashley Rosenbaum 



CITY OF BELOIT 
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: September 21, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CSM-2016-09 

Applicant: R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. Owner: First Congregational Church 
 

Location: 801 Bushnell Street (627 
Church Street) 

Existing Zoning: PLI, Public Lands & 
Institutions District & Wellhead Overlay 

Existing Land Use: Church & Vacant 
Structure 

Total Area: 1.496 Acres 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
R.H. Batterman & Co., Inc. has submitted an Application for the Review of a Minor Subdivision and a 2-Lot Certified Survey 
Map (CSM) for the property located at 801 Bushnell Street. According to Section 12.05(1)(b) of the Subdivision Ordinance, 
the Plan Commission may approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor subdivision of land within the City where there 
is no dedication of land to the City. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 The intent of the proposed CSM is to separate the existing, vacant church-owned building addressed as 627 Church 
Street from the remainder of the parcel in order to sell this parcel to a new owner. The residential structure located at 
627 Church Street was once on a separate parcel, but was combined with the church parcel many years ago. The 
structure was most recently used as the church’s resale shop, but has been vacant since 2010. 

o The structure located at 627 Church Street is a contributing structure in the College Park Historic District. 
o The church requested a Certificate of Appropriateness to demolish the house earlier this year. 
o Planning staff and the Landmarks Commission opposed the church’s request to demolish the structure, and 

a workgroup consisting of Planning Staff, three Landmarks Commissioners, and various church officials 
worked for two months to find a reasonable alternative to demolition.  

o After hiring a realtor to market 627 Church Street to the public, the church found an undisclosed buyer that 
will operate a use permitted by-right in the PLI, Public Lands and Insitutions District. 

o If the proposed CSM is approved, Lot 1 will remain in the College-Park Historic District and Lot 2 will remain 
an Individual Historic Landmark. 

 Proposed Lot 1 is 10,449 square feet in area and includes 66.41 feet of frontage on Church Street, and will be 
formally reassigned the 627 Church Street address. Proposed Lot 2 is 54,732 square feet in area and includes the 
remainder of the church campus, with frontage on Church Street, Bushnell Street, and Park Avenue. 

 Proposed Lots 1 & 2 are subject to the minimum lot area and lot width standards applicable in the adjacent R-1B, 
Single-Family Residential District (8,750 square feet and 50 feet, respectively). Both proposed lots meet these 
standards. 

 Planning staff strongly supports this CSM request, as it will allow the church to sell the property to a buyer that will 
rehabilitate and provide a productive use for a vacant structure in an otherwise vibrant neighborhood. 

 An identical CSM was submitted in 2014 and approved by the Plan Commission. However, the potential buyer 
decided not to purchase the property at 627 Church Street and the CSM was never recorded. 

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed the proposed CSM and have not submitted any comments. 
 
 
Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:  
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential, including supportive institutional uses, for the 
subject property.  
 
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5 (Apply sound, sustainable practices to promote a high 
quality community through historic preservation, community revitalization, and successful new development.) 
 

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Demolition of structures, especially older buildings, requires a large 

amount of energy and destroys the capacity of the parcel to be used for a productive purpose.  The sale of the 
property to an entity that will rehabilitate and reuse the structure is an alternative significantly more sustainable than 
demolition. 

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 



 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the 
property located at 801 Bushnell Street in the City of Beloit, subject to the following conditions: 

1. Lot 1 shall be assigned the address of 627 Church Street. 
2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 31, 2016. 

 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A 
 

Attachments: Location Map, Application, CSM, and Resolution.



 

 



 



 



 



 

 

 



RESOLUTION 

APPROVING A TWO-LOT CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP 

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 801 BUSHNELL STREET 

 

WHEREAS, Section 12.05(1)b of Chapter 12 of the Code of General Ordinances of the 

City of Beloit entitled “Subdivision and Official Map Ordinance” authorizes the City Plan 

Commission of the City of Beloit to approve, conditionally approve, or reject any minor 

subdivision of land within the jurisdiction of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the property located at 801 

Bushnell Street, containing 1.496 acres, more or less, is located within the jurisdiction of the City 

of Beloit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission of the City of Beloit has reviewed the attached 

two-lot Certified Survey Map, which pertains to the following described land: 

 

Lots 1, 2, 13, 14, 15, 16 and part of Lots 3 and 12 of Block 21 of the Original Plat 

of the City of Beloit made by John Hopkins, being all a part of the N.W. ¼ of the 

S.W. ¼ of Section 36, T. 1 N., R. 12 E. of the Fourth P.M., City of Beloit, Rock 

County, Wisconsin. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Plan Commission of the City of 

Beloit does hereby conditionally approve the attached two-lot Certified Survey Map for the 

property located at 801 Bushnell Street, subject to the following conditions: 

 

1. Lot 1 shall be assigned the address of 627 Church Street. 

2. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 

31, 2016. 

 
 

 

Adopted this 21st day of September, 2016. 

 

 

   

James Faragher, Plan Commission Chairperson 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  

Julie Christensen 

Community Development Director 

 



 

 

CITY OF BELOIT 

REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION 
 
 
Meeting Date: September 21, 2016 
 

Agenda Item: 4 
 

File Number: RPB-2016-10 

Request: Sale of Land to Hendricks 
Commercial Properties 

Owner: City of Beloit Location: 650 Third Street 

 
 
Request Overview/Background Information: 
Hendricks Commercial Properties (HCP) has submitted an offer to purchase a 4,231 square-foot portion of the City-owned 
land located at 650 Third Street. This land is a superfluous landscaped section of the Ironworks South municipal parking 
lot property. If approved and acquired, HCP’s intent is to combine this land into the Ironworks West parking lot currently 
under construction on their property located at 690 Third Street as shown on the attached map. This sale of municipal 
land is required to be reviewed by the Plan Commission in accordance with Section 62.23(5) of Wisconsin Statutes. 
 
 
Key Issues: 

 Earlier this year, HCP demolished the one-story sections of the office building located at 690 Third Street with the 
intent of creating a new parking lot known as Ironworks West. There is an existing 30-foot “jog” in the property line 
between the City and HCP parcels, which prevents the most efficient parking lot layout. To address this issue, 
HCP prepared site plans for the Ironworks West parking lot that included only their property, as well as an 
alternative layout that incorporated the land that is the subject of this request. Planning staff approved the site 
plans for the Ironworks West parking lot on June 30

th
, contingent upon City Council approval of this land transfer. 

 The attached Plat of Survey establishes a legal description of the land to be transferred, which has been 
incorporated into a Purchase and Sale Agreement between the City and HCP. 

 The Ironworks West parking lot expansion is one of many short- and long-term efforts underway to increase the 
supply and management of off-street parking to serve all of the employment growth in and around the Ironworks 
campus. The applicant has submitted a related request to the Traffic Review Committee to designate 48 parking 
stalls in the Ironworks South lot as 2-hour stalls to serve the YMCA facility under construction. 

 
 
Consistency with Strategic Plan:  

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5. 
  

Sustainability: 
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A 
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A 
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the sale of a 4,231 square-foot portion of the City-
owned land located at 650 Third Street to Hendricks Commercial Properties for expansion of their parking lot known as 
Ironworks West, as shown on the attached Plat of Survey and as contemplated in a Purchase and Sale Agreement. 
 

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price is $1. 
 

Attachments: Ironworks Parking Layout Map & Plat of Survey 
 



 

 
 



 

 

 

 
 

  


	Review and consideration of a Purchase and Sales Agreement for a portion of 650 Third Street

